ALBERTA VACCINE INVENTORY (AVI) MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Vaccine Ordering and Management Training Guide

Updated November 2019





Contents

DEFINITION OF TERMS	3
PURPOSE	5
ORDER FUNCTION	5
AVI WORKFLOW	6
RECONCILE VACCINE INVENTORY	7
CATEGORIES AND REASONS EXPLANATION	11
CREATING A VACCINE ORDER	12
TRACKING YOUR VACCINE ORDER	15
RECEIVING AN ORDER	16
BACK-ORDERS	20
DENIED ORDERS	21
TRANSFERRING VACCINE	22
VACCINE RETURNS	25





DEFINITION OF TERMS

• Alberta Health Provincial Vaccine Depot

The Alberta Health warehouse and distribution center for all publicly funded vaccines in Alberta. Commonly referred to as the PVD, this is the first tier in the Alberta Vaccine Inventory System.

Organization

This term applies to all locations that receive vaccine from the Provincial Vaccine Depot and processes orders from facilities. Organizations are the second tier of the Alberta Vaccine Inventory System. An example of an organization would be an Alberta Health Services (AHS) Vaccine Depot.

• Facility

This term applies to all locations that receive vaccine from an organization. These locations are where vaccine is administered and do not distribute vaccines to other locations. Facilities are the third tier of the Alberta Vaccine Inventory System and commonly refer to a public health center or community provider.

• Facility Client, Organization Client, Registry Client, Super User

These terms refer to the different authority levels in the AVI system.

- Facility clients have access to their facility only and have limited permissions.
- Organization Clients have access to their organization only and have limited permissions.
- Registry Clients have access to all organizations and facilities and access to most areas of the AVI system.
- Super Users have access to all organizations and facilities and access to all areas of the AVI system.

• Physical Inventory

This term refers to the quantity of each vaccine that is physically at a location. Physical inventory must be counted prior to reconciling inventory in AVI.

Reconciliation of Inventory

This term refers to the process of comparing the physical inventory to the AVI inventory then updating the AVI inventory to reflect the physical inventory using the appropriate category and reason.





• Funding Source

This term refers to the funding program that the vaccine was purchased through. Types of funding sources include:

- Publicly Funded (P) All vaccines purchased by Alberta Health to be used in publicly funded programs.
- Cost Recovery (\$) All vaccines purchased by Alberta Health Services to be used for clients that do not qualify for publicly funded vaccine (e.g. Travel vaccine), or when there is not a publicly funded program (e.g. Yellow Fever).
- \circ Research (R) All vaccines purchased for research purposes.
- Other (O) All vaccines purchased with funds not included in the previous listings.

• Order Set

Found in the *Create Order* screen, these are the fillable order sheets which list all the vaccines available to order for an organization or a facility. Organizations and facilities may have several order sets available to them.

• Vaccine Order

Vaccine orders are placed by organizations or facilities to their designated depot for vaccines. Vaccine orders are processed in AVI and physically shipped out to the location.

• Viable vaccine

Vaccine that can be used for clients.

Non-Viable

Vaccine that has been spoiled, expired, recalled or otherwise compromised and cannot be used for clients.

• Packing Slip

The paperwork included with all vaccine orders that indicates the shipping and receiving locations as well as the vaccines, quantities, lots and expiries. The packing slip details should be compared to the actual contents in the vaccine shipment to confirm accuracy of the vaccine order.





PURPOSE

This guide demonstrates the steps needed to reconcile your vaccine inventory, place vaccine orders, receive vaccine orders, transfer vaccines and return vaccines using the Alberta Vaccine Inventory (AVI) System.

Super Users, Registry Clients, Organization Clients and Facility Clients use the processes listed in this document.

ORDER FUNCTION

The order function is a permission that is granted by your designated depot.

This function will allow you to:

- Place orders for your organization or facility.
- Track the status of existing vaccine orders.
- View past vaccine order history and details.
- Transfer vaccine to other facilities (at the discretion of your depot).
- Return vaccines to your designated depot (at the discretion of your depot).





AVI WORKFLOW

The AVI system utilizes a three tier ordering system to track vaccine from the Provincial Vaccine Depot to an organization to a facility. The AVI system is used to order and manage vaccine inventory throughout the province.



It is important to follow this workflow to manage your inventory in the AVI System. This will help to ensure that your inventory is accurate in the system.





RECONCILE VACCINE INVENTORY

All organizations and facilities are required to reconcile inventory before placing a routine vaccine order in AVI. All facilities are expected to reconcile inventory on a regular basis. Check with your depot to determine the expected frequency for your facility.

1. Using the Navigation Menu, click on Lot Numbers Menu and then click *Reconciliation* to show the *Reconcile Inventory* screen.

	<mark>⊿ Main</mark> Home	Organization (IF	RMS): AHS-DEF	POT-HIGH I	LEVEL (2009	9)						Date: July	24, 2017
	Logout Select Organization (IRMS) Select Facility Select VFC Pin	Psconcile in Show 10 ▼ Collapse	entries	ilo Water I	Morok 4 da	oo/pkg	Vaccine I	Description 🔺		Search			
	 Favorites Patient 	Lot Num.	Exp Date	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment (+/-)	Cate	egory	Reason		Funding Source	Inactive	Add Row
	Organization (IRMS) Eacilities	L029074	2. 13/12	4		0.0	No Catego	ry Required 🔻	No Reason Required	•	\$		+
	Lot Numbers	M024507	2019/05.	0		0.0	No Catego	ry Required 🔻	No Reason Required	•	P		+
Ч	Reconciliation	M026094	2019/03/29			0.0	No Catego	y Required 🔻	No Reason Required	۲	\$		+
	Aggregate Vaccine Counts	M026094 Showing 1 to 4	2019/03/29 of 4 entries	3	Ехра	nd/Coll	apse	y Required 🔻	No Reason Required	۲	Р		+
	Search Results Detail	Diluent	/ Diluent Steri	ile Wat	l	оу Туре	;						
	Orders/Transfers Reports	Lot Number	Exp Date	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment (+/-)	Cate	egory	Reason		Funding Source	Inactive	Add Row

In this screen you may expand or collapse lines by vaccine type by selecting the arrow on the vaccine line. You may also change the number of entries that appear on the page by choosing a number from the drop down menu at the top of the screen.

2. Click the **Print** button in the lower right-hand side of the page.

🕆 Hep A/He	Hep A/Hep B-Pediatric / Twinrix® Jr. 1 dose/pkg												
Lot Number	Exp Date¢	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment (+/-)	Category	Reason	Funding Source	Inactive	Add Row				
AHABB338A P	2017/09/30	0		0.0	No Category Required V	No Reason Required	Р		+				
AHABB348A K	2018/08/31	14		0.0	No Category Required V	No Reason Required	\$		+				
AHABB348A L	2018/08/31	0		0.0	No Category Required V	No Reason Required	\$		+				
AHABB361A B	2019/01/31	10		0.0	No Category Required V	No Reason Required	\$		+				
Showing 1 to 4	of 4 entries												
Showing 1 to 10 of 38 entries First Previous 1 2 3 4 Next Last Print Reset Save													
Inventory Last Submitted: 2017/07/14 Submit Inventory													
I amound .													

TIP: Ensure your pop up blocker is turned off for the AVI website as your browser will block the printable reconciliation page as a pop up.





3. The *Reconciliation Worksheet* will open and can be printed and taken to your storage units in order to do your physical count.

	Reconciliation Worksheet											
Drganization (IRMS): AHS-DEPOT-FORT MCMURRAY facility:												
Vaccine Description	Lot Number	Vaccine Name	Exp Date	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment	Reason	Funding Source	Inactive			
Diluent	L029137	Diluent Sterile Water-Merck 1 dose/pkg	2018/06/02	0				Р				
Diluent	M024507	Diluent Sterile Water-Merck 1 dose/pkg	2019/03/11	28				Р				
Diluent	M026094	Diluent Sterile Water-Merck 1 dose/pkg	2019/03/29	32				Р				

4. Count physical supply of vaccines within all fridges and freezers. If there is a lot number in your fridge or freezer that is not listed on your *Reconciliation Worksheet*, please contact your depot for assistance on correcting the issue. While counting, note the funding source indicated in the **Funding Source** column. For more information regarding funding sources please refer to the *Definition of Terms* section of this manual.

5. Enter the values from your count in the **Physical Inventory** column on the worksheet.

Note: To reconcile the inventory, Facility Clients must fill out all lines before submitting inventory. Due to a larger quantity of on hand doses, Organization Clients, Registry Clients and Super Users have the ability to only fill out the affected lines before submitting inventory.

6. To reconcile the inventory in AVI, do one of the following options:

For Facility Clients:

Option A: If the physical inventory in your storage unit matches the quantity in the **Quantity on Hand** column, enter the quantity in the **Physical Inventory** column. Once the physical inventory for all products has been filled please proceed to step 8.

Option B: If changes are required, determine if the changes are due to administered, wasted, spoiled or expired reasons (see table on page 10 for further information). If yes, make all necessary changes by:

- 1. Entering the physical inventory count in the **Physical Inventory** column.
- 2. The adjustment quantity in the **Adjustment** column is automatically calculated.

TIP: Facility Clients are not able to submit positive adjustments. If you have more inventory than is listed in AVI (positive adjustment), you may have an outstanding order to receive. Check the **Create/View Orders** page before updating count. If your positive adjustment is due to an error during reconciling, please contact your depot for assistance.

3. Selecting the appropriate category in the **Category** drop down menu.

4. Selecting the appropriate reason in the **Reason** drop down menu.

See step 7 for information on entering multiple categories and reasons for one lot.

5. Once the physical inventory for all products has been entered, proceed to step 8.

TIP: All lines will need to be filled in for a Facility Client to successfully submit inventory.



For Organization Client, Registry Client or Super User:

Option A: If the physical inventory in your storage unit matches the quantity in the **Quantity on Hand** column for *all* the vaccines and no changes are required, select **Submit Inventory** button. Proceed to step 10.

Option B: If changes are required, determine if the changes are due to administered, wasted, spoiled or expired reasons (see table on page 10 for further information). Make all necessary changes by:

- 1. Entering the physical inventory count in the **Physical Inventory** column.
- 2. The adjustment quantity in the Adjustment column is automatically calculated.

TIP: If you have more inventory than is listed in AVI (positive adjustment), you may have an outstanding order to receive. Check the *Create/View Orders* page before updating count.

- 3. Selecting the appropriate category in the **Category** drop down menu.
- 4. Selecting the appropriate reason in the **Reason** drop down menu.

See step 7 for information on entering multiple categories and reasons for one lot.

 Once the physical inventory for applicable products has been recorded, proceed to step 8.

10 🔻 🗧	entries						Sear	rch:			
Collapse A	н				Vaccine D	escription 🔺					
Diluent / Diluent Sterile Water-Merck 1 dose/pkg											
.ot Number	Exp Date	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment (+/-)	Cate	gory	Reason	7	Funding Source	nactive	Ad Ro
M026094	2019/03/29	419	417	-2.0	Wasted	<u>_</u>	select	•	P		+
nowing 1 to 1	of 1 entries						select Pseken/Drenned/Spilled				
Diluent /	Diluent Ster	ile Water-	Merck 10 d	ose/pkg			Drawn up, not used				
.ot Number	Exp Date	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment (+/-)	Cate	gory	Vaccine Damaged in Transit		Funding Source	nactive	Ad Ro
N004776	2019/09/25	2.520		0.0	No Categor	v Required V	wasted/Influenza Season End	/	P		+

7. If the adjustment to your inventory was due to multiple reasons, you can use the **Add Row** button to create a new line to enter multiple adjustment reasons.

🕯 HPV, nor	navalent / Ga	ardasil 9 ®	10 dose/p	kg									
Lot Number	Exp Date	Quantity on Hand	Physical Inventory	Adjustment (+/-)	Category	Reason		Funding Source	Inactive	Add Row			
R022605	2021/02/20	170		0.0	No Category Required v	No Reason Required	•	P		+			
Showing 1 to 1	of 1 entries												

This button will add a line directly under your selected line with the same lot and the physical inventory quantity that was entered in the previous line.



AVI System Vaccine Ordering and Management Training Guide



Showing 1 to 1	nowing i to i or i entities											
🐨 HPV, nonavalent / Gardasil 9 🛞 10 dose/pkg												
Lot Number	Exp Date\$	Quantity	Physical Inventory	Adjustment	Category		Reason		Funding	Inactive	Add	
R022605	2021/02/20	170	100	-70.0	Administered	•	Administered	Ŧ	P			
R022605	2021/02/20	100	90	-10.0	Spoiled	•	Failure to Store Properly	۲	Р		+	
Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries												

The **Add Row** button can be used as many times as necessary, but once a line has been added, users are no longer able to modify the lines above.

8. If the physical inventory equals '0' on any lot number, the **Inactive** box can be checked to inactivate the lot when the page is saved or submitted. Inactive lots will not appear on the *Reconcile Inventory* screen.

TIP: If physical inventory is not zero, you will not be able to inactivate the lot.

9. When all the quantities in your storage units have been entered, click the **Submit Inventory** button.

Next
eset Save
mit Inventory

10. Once submitted, the *Inventory Last Submitted* date on the left side of the page will be updated.

Quality Assurance Check: The AVI System automatically does a quality assurance check on your order before it is submitted. If any information was entered incorrectly, an error message will show on the top of the page in red or in pop up boxes. Correct the noted mistakes and re-submit.

A helpful training video for this process is available on the AVI home page.





CATEGORIES AND REASONS EXPLANATION

The adjustment reasons are separated into categories to simplify the process. Always use the category and reason which best describes what happened to the doses in your inventory.

Negative Adjustments

Category	Rationalization
Administered	This reason accounts for doses that were used for clients.
Expired	Vaccines were not used before the manufacturer's expiration date and have expired on shelf. Doses marked as expired are eligible for return to your depot using the vaccine return process in AVI.
Recall	Vaccines that are nationally recalled, or Alberta Health sends notice to stop using the vaccine and return it to your depot. Doses marked as recalled are eligible for return to your depot using the vaccine return process in AVI.
Spoiled	Vaccines have spoiled due to improper storage practices, man-made or natural disasters, or spoiled during transport. Doses marked as spoiled are eligible for return to your depot using the vaccine return process in AVI.
Wasted	Vaccines are not viable because they were either dropped, or lost/unaccounted for. Doses marked as wasted are not eligible for return to your depot as they are expected to have been discarded on site.
Wasted/Influenza Season End	This reason accounts for doses that remain after the end of the influenza season. Doses marked as "end of season" are not eligible for return to the Provincial Vaccine Depot and will remove the product from your inventory. <u>Use this reason code for influenza vaccine only</u> . Only specific facilities should use this reason to remove vaccine from their inventory. If you are unsure, please contact your depot to confirm before removing inventory .

Key Tips to Remember:

- Select the best category and reason that describes what happened to those doses.
- Tracking doses periodically makes it easier to reconcile before placing an order.
- It may be helpful to develop a system at your organization or facility to immediately log doses that are wasted or spoiled.





CREATING A VACCINE ORDER

1. Using the Navigation Menu, click on Orders/Transfers Menu and then click Create/View Orders to show the Current Order/Transfer List.

<mark>⊿ Main</mark> Home Logout	Organization (IRM	IS): AHS-DEPOT-HIGH L	EVEL (2009)							Date: July 25, 2017
Select Organization	Current Orde	r/Transfer List								
(IRMS) Select Facility	Organization (IRMS):	AHS-DEPOT-HIGH L	EVEL	۲	Facility:	select			PIN:	AHSNO-HL V
Select VFC Pin	Current Organiz	ation (IRMS)/Facility: A	HS-DEPOT-H	GH LEVEL	_					
Favorites										Find
Patient	Inbound Ord	ers Orden Ner		DIN	0	hanit Data	A second Data	State		
Organization (IRMS)	Select	Order Nu	nber	PIN	Su	bmit Date	Approval Date	Statu	IS	
Facilities	Backordered	Orders								
Lot Numbers	Select	Order	Number	PIN		Submit Date	Back	order Date		
∠ Orders/Transfers Alorte										
Create/View Orders	Denied Order	rs Or	ler Number		PIN	Submit Date		Denial Date		
Search History	001000					out in the out		Domai Dato		
Modify Order Set	Inbound Tran	isfers								
Approve Orders	Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date		Sending Organiza	ition (IRMS)/Facility	St	atus	
Approve Transfer	Outbound Tr	ansfers								
Approved Orders	Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Dat	e	Receiving Organiza	tion (IRMS)/Facility	Stat	us	
Accountability Submission	->	10145	AB-RTN	2017/07/04	ŧ .	PROVINCIAL V	ACCINE - RTN	Appro	oved	

2. Click the Create Order button at the bottom of the page to open the Create Order screen.

Select	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Approval Date	Status
>	307	AHSCA-CA	11/07/2014		In Manual Review
>	285	AHSCA-CA	11/04/2014	11/05/2014	Shipped or Ready for Pick Up
Backordere	ed Orders				
Select	Order	Number	PIN	Submit Date	Backorder Date
Denied Ord	ers				
Select	Or	der Number	PIN	Submit Date	Denial Date
Inbound Tra	insfers				
Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Sending O	ganization (IRMS)/Facility
>	188	AHSNO-WES	10/31/2014	AHS-NORTH Z	ONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK
Outbound T	ransfers				
Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Receiving Or	ganization (IRMS)/Facility
Rejected Tr	ransfers				
Select Tr	ansfer Number PIN	Submit Date	Receiving Orga	anization (IRMS)/Facility	Reject Date Rejected By Statu





3. The Create Order screen will open.

Organization (IRMS): AHS	DEPOT-HIGH	LEVEL (2009)							Date	July 25, 2017
Create Order											
Organization (IRMS):	AHS-DEPOT	HIGH LE	VEL			First Name:	TAM	ИY			
Facility:						Middle Name:					
Phone Number:	(780)8	41-3230				Last Name:	MCN	ABB			
Phone Extension:						Address:	11202	2 100 AVE			
Email:						City:	HIGH	LEVEL			
						Province:	AB				
						Postal Code:	T0H 1	1Z0			
Monday:		09:00	•	17:00	•	Tuesday:		09:00	•	17:00	•
Wednesday:		09:00	•	17:00	•	Thursday:		09:00	•	17:00	•
Friday:		09:00	•	17:00	•						
PIN: AHSNO-HL						Instructions:					
Order Date: 2017/07/2	5					Order Status:	In Progress				
Submitter: EVERDEE!	N SINCLAIR	(EVERD	EEN.S	INCLAIR)							
Comments:											
Inventory Last Submitt	ed: 2017/07/	14									
Last Order Submitted: 2	017/07/05 09:	:54:10 Al	N								
Order Set:	select					•					

Note: On hand inventory must be reconciled and submitted before an order is placed. If you are redirected to the *Reconcile Inventory* screen, you must submit your inventory before you will be able to place an order.

4. At the top of the page is the delivery contact information, address and delivery times. Review your vaccine delivery contact and address information. If your contact or shipping information needs updating, please have this updated before placing an order by contacting your Depot.

5. Select your shipping times by checking the box and selecting the appropriate times that you can receive vaccine shipments. Please check with your depot that this information is used as several organizations do not use this as a method of communication.

6. General comments can be added to the blank field labelled **Comments**. Comments can also be added to each line of the order. Delivery Instructions can be included in the blank field labelled **Instructions**.

7. Select an order set. Most facilities and organizations will have multiple order sets to choose from. Only one order set can be used per order. If products from multiple orders sets are required, multiple orders will need to be placed.

8. To place an order, review the following information that is prepopulated on the order screen under the shipping information:

- a. Physical Inventory (auto-populated reconciled inventory numbers).
- b. Enter the **Order Quantity** (required for products you want to order. Quantities must be entered by **dose** not unit).
- c. Enter **Comments** (if desired).



- **9.** Double check your entries and click one of the following buttons at the bottom to continue:
 - a. Click the **Submit Order** button to send the order to your depot. You cannot make changes to an order after it has been submitted. Contact your depot immediately if you need to make changes.

Quality Assurance Check: AVI automatically does a quality assurance check on your order before it is submitted.

If any field is entered incorrectly, an error message will show on the top of the page in red or in pop up boxes. Correct the noted mistakes and re-submit.

- b. Click the Save Order button to save the order, but not submit it. Saved orders are listed in your *Inbound Orders* section of the *Create/View Orders* screen. Saved orders can be re-opened, updated and submitted at any time. You may also delete saved orders if they will not be used by clicking the **Delete Order** button.
- c. Click the **Cancel** button to cancel the order and exit the **Create Order** screen. Nothing will be submitted or saved.

Order Details								
Vaccine	Vaccine Name	Funding	Dose Used Last Month	Physical Inventory	Order Quantity	Urgent	Priority Reason	Comments
dTap	Boostrix® 10 dose/pkg	Р		40	10		select 🔻	
Hepatitis B Pediatric	Engerix-B® Pediatric 1 dose/pkg	Ρ		6	25		select V	Clinic Use
HPV, nonavalent	Gardasil 9 ® 10 dose/pkg	Р		10			select •	
Meningococcal polysaccharide groups A, C, W-135 and Y conjugate	Nimenrix™ 10 dose/pkg	Ρ		20			select V	
Varicella	Varivax® III 1 dose/pkg	Р		4	10		select •	
Diluent	Diluent Sterile Water-Merck 1 dose/pkg	Ρ		4	10		select V	
							Cancel Sa Submit and Enter Ne	ext Skip and Enter Next

A helpful training video for this process is available on the AVI home page.





TRACKING YOUR VACCINE ORDER

Orders can be tracked through each stage of the order process after an order has been submitted. The AVI System will automatically update the order status as orders are approved by your depot and when the order is finally shipped. The order status can be tracked at the top section of the *Create/View Orders* screen.

View the status of a specific order

- 1. Using the Navigation Menu, click on the Orders/Transfers Menu.
- 2. Click on Create/View Orders to direct you to the Create/View Orders screen.

3. The order status of each order is visible on the right under the Status column.

Inbound	Orders				
Select	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Approval Date	Status
>	41938	AHSED-ED	2017/05/09	2017/05/09	Approved
>	41940	AHSED-ED	2017/05/09	2017/05/09	Approved
>	41941	AHSED-ED	2017/05/09	2017/05/09	Approved
>	41958	AHSED-ED	2017/05/09	2017/05/09	Approved
>	41966	AHSED-ED	2017/05/09	2017/05/09	Approved
>	41969	AHSED-ED	2017/05/09	2017/05/09	Approved
>	42067	AHSED-ED	2017/05/24	2017/05/30	Approved
>	42065	AHSED-ED	2017/05/24		In Manual Review
>	42189	AHSED-ED	2017/06/22		In Manual Review
>	42032	AHSED-ED	2017/05/15	2017/05/15	Partially Received

Status Type	What it Means
Saved	The order has been started and saved, however it has NOT been submitted. Note: Saved orders are not submitted to your designated depot.
In Manual Review	The order has been created and submitted to your designated depot and is waiting for their approval.
Pending Approval	The order is awaiting approval from your designated depot.
Approved	The order has been approved by your designated depot.
Shipped or Ready for Pickup	The order has been shipped from the depot, or is ready for pick up depending on the agreement between your facility and your depot.

Note: Do not receive orders in AVI until physical count, lots and expiry dates are verified by comparing received product to AVI packing slip.





RECEIVING AN ORDER

Once a vaccine order has been physically received by your office, the shipment and the packing slip have been compared, and the product is stored appropriately, you should electronically receive the vaccine order in AVI. This will move the order out of the *Inbound Orders* section and into your inventory.

TIP: It is suggested that the vaccine shipment packing slip is used to complete the *Receive Order* function after the shipment lots, expiries and quantities have been verified and stored properly. See below for an example of an AVI packing slip.

		AVI Im	munization	Program	UCI V	1003	
		(Imn	nunization Program	m Copy)			
hipment Date:			PIN:		6024	o	rder #: 57379
HIPPED FROM:	AHS-DEPOT-CAMRO 5510 - 46 AVENUE CAMROSE, AB T4V 4	SE P8	то:		VERMILLION CO 4701-52 STREET VERMILION, AB	MMUNITY HEAL T9X 1J9	TH CENTRE
hone:	(780)679-2965		Phone:				
ax:			Fax:				
Delivery Instructio	S ON RECEIVING VA	CCINE:					
Vaccine Fund	ing Manufacturer	Lot Number	Expires	QTY Ordered	Doses	Units	Cost
Haemophilus Influenzae b	GSK	A72CA954A	2019/04/30	1	1		\$0.00
							¢0.00

1. Using the Navigation Menu, click on Orders/Transfers Menu and then click Create/View Orders to show the Current Order/Transfer List.





2. Click the Selection Arrow to select the desired vaccine order to open the *Receive Order* screen. The order Status column should say "Shipped or Ready for Pickup."

elect	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Approval Date	Status
>	307	AHSCA-CA	11/07/2014		In Manual Review
>	285	AHSCA-CA	11/04/2014	11/05/2014	Shipped or Ready for Pick Up
ackordere	d Orders				
Select	Order !	Number	PIN	Submit Date	Backorder Date
enied Ord	ers				
Select	Ord	er Number	PIN	Submit Date	Denial Date
bound Tra	nsfers				
elect	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Sending Org	ganization (IRMS)/Facility
>	188	AHSNO-WES	10/31/2014	AHS-NORTH ZO	NE/AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK
utbound T	ransfers				
Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Receiving Org	ganization (IRMS)/Facility
ejected Tr	ansfers				
elect Tr	anafer Number PIN	Submit Date	Receiving Orga	nization (IRMS)/Eacility	Reject Date Rejected By St

3. On the *Receive Order* screen, you will see the vaccine and the number of doses ordered.

Receive Order								
Organization (IRMS): AHS-CALGARY ZONE First Name: CALGARY								
Facility: AHS-DEPOT-CALGARY Middle Name:								
Phone Number: (403)955-6650 Last Name: DEPOT								
Phone Extension:					Address:	1213 - 4TH STR	EET SW 5TH FLOOR	
Email:	-				CALGARY,	AB T1X OL3		
Order Number: 28	5				Depot Ship	ping Instructio	ns:	
VFC PIN: AHSCA	-CA				Order Statu	is: Shipped or F	Ready for Pick Up	
Order Date: 11/04	/2014 23:47:08				Approver:	ELAINA BOLTO	DN (ELAINA.BOLTON)	
Submitter: DIANN	A QUIDERA-AGU	ILAR (DIANNACI)						
Receiver: KRISTI S	SIAHAYA (KRISTI	_RC)						
Original Order#:								
Comments:								
Order Set / Order 1	Type: INFLUENZ	(A / Depot						
Order Details								
Shipped Quantity	Receipt Quantity	Rejected Quantity	Vaccin e	Manufacturer	Lot Number	Expiration Date	Reason for rejecting	
50			Influenza Nasal Spray	Nasal MEDIMMUNE, 2547854 06/30/2015select				
Comments						Tracking #		
							Cancel Receive	

4. There are several shipment possibilities. Please see the directions for the scenario that best describes your current shipment for complete instructions on how to receive the vaccines into the system.

Shipment possibilities/scenarios: Follow the directions for the appropriate scenario below.

- The order is complete and viable.
- The order is a partial order with missing/incorrect vaccine products.
- The whole order is damaged or nonviable.

If the order is complete and viable:

- a. Verify the products listed in the order match the verified packing slip. Enter the **Receipt Quantity** for each vaccine product shipped.
- **b.** <u>Missing Information</u>: If there is any missing information, such as Manufacturer, Lot Number, or Expiration Date for any product; contact your depot before receiving the vaccine.



- **c.** <u>Incorrect Information</u>: If there is any incorrect product Manufacturer, Lot Number, or Expiration Date information, contact your depot before receiving the vaccine.
- **d.** Click the **Receive** button. The system updates your inventory with the received doses by lot number.

If the order is partial with missing/incorrect vaccine products:

- a. Receive any lines where all doses were received using the steps as described above.
- **b.** For the missing vaccine products:
 - 1) Enter the quantity of doses actually received in the **Receipt Quantity** column (this may be 0) and enter a **Rejected Quantity** that shows the number of doses missing for that product.
 - 2) Select Shipment is Incomplete or Incorrect Lot Number from the Reason for Rejecting dropdown.
- c. Click the Receive button. You will receive a warning advising that a child order will not be created for the rejected quantities. Proceed with receiving the order by selecting Yes, I would like to receive my order.
- d. The system updates your inventory with only the received doses.
- e. A transfer is created in the AVI system for the products that have been rejected. The transfer is visible in the *Outbound Transfer* section of your *Create/View Orders* screen. This transfer will alert your depot to the discrepancy in your order and allow your depot to add the rejected product back into their inventory.
- **f.** A new order will have to be submitted if you would like to receive the missing/incorrect products.

Receive O	rder								
Organization	n (IRMS):	AHS-DEPOT-	CAMROSE		First Name: Si	HELLEY			
Facility: Middle Name:									
Phone Numb	ber: (780)	679-2965			Last Name: V/	NDER WOUD	-		
Phone Exter	nsion:				Address: 5510	- 46 AVENUE			
Email:					CAMROSE, A	B T4V 4P8			
Order Numb					Depot Shipping	Instructions:	to for Disk I		
VFC PIN: A	Mus	t add up			Order Status: S	Shipped of Real	JY TOF PICK U	ID CALLESEND	
Submitter: S		1	(SHELLEY WALDORE)		Approver. ELS	A RASINUSSE	N (ELSA.IO	(SMUSSEN)	
Receiver: B(to s	snipped	NIE GAWRONSKY)						
Original Ord		i o o titu	inc.ordinoiti)						
Comments:	l dr	antity							
Order Set / C	order ype	: PVD SCHO	OL ORDER / Depot						
Order Det	ails								
Shipped Quantity	Receipt Quantity	Rejected Quantity	Vaccine	Funding	Manufacturer	Lot Number	Expiration Date	Reason for rejecting	
40	30	10	Hepatitis B Pediatric	Р	GLAXO- SMITHKLINE	AHBVC680AA	2020/08/31	-select Shinment is damaged	
Comments						Tracking #		Shipment is incomplete	
20			Meningococcal polysaccharide groups A, C, W-135 and Y conjugate	Ρ	PFIZER	A90CA316C	2019/12/31	Shipment was not ordered Incorrect lot number	
Comments						Tracking #			
								Cancel Receive	

Note: The quantity received and quantity rejected must add up to the shipped quantity.





If the whole order is damaged or nonviable (for example, a cold chain failure):

Contact your depot immediately for further instructions for vaccines that arrive damaged or spoiled.

A helpful training video for this process is available on the AVI home page.



AVI System Vaccine Ordering and Management Training Guide



BACKORDERS

Backordered orders will appear on the *Create/View Orders* page under the heading *Backordered Orders*. Entire or partial vaccine orders can be placed into backorder by your depot. Vaccine orders that have been backordered will be assigned new order number. Backorders are created when there is not enough stock to fill the order or a depot may move orders into backorder to purposely hold the order for further review.

Backorde	red Orders			
Select	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Backorder Date
>	90491	PH8279AHS	2019/07/05	2019/07/05
>	90751	PH8279AHS	2019/08/12	2019/08/12

You can view the quantities that were backordered by pressing the **Selection Arrow**.

Order Number: 90751 Instructions: Save						Save C	hanges				
Submit Date: 2019/0	8/12 01:32:59			Order	Order Status: Backordered						
Submitter: AHSDEP	OT USER (AHSDEPOT	USER)		Appro	Approver: ()						
Receiver:											
Comments:					Approval Date:						
Original Order# 90749					Exception Description:						
Order Set / Order Typ	e: PUBLIC HEALTH R	OUTINE / [Depot	Exce	ption Commen	t:					
Exception Reason:											
Inventory Last Subm	itted: 2019/08/12										
Last Order Submitted:	2019/08/12 01:32:59 PI	M									
Order Frequency: T	wice Weekly			Order	r Timing:						
Order Schedule:											
Order Items											
Vaccine	Vaccine Name	Funding	Dose Used Last Month	Physical Inventory	Ordered Quantity	Approved Quantity	Received Quantity	Priority Reason	Receipt Date		
dTap	Boostrix® 10 dose/pkg	Р			40	0					
Comments		Tracking	#:								
dTap-IPV	Boostrix®-Polio 10 dose/pkg	Р			30	0					
Comments		Tracking	#:								
Pneumococcal, Polysaccharide	Pneumovax® 23 10 dose/pkg	Ρ			20	0					
Comments		Tracking	#:								
									Cancel		

Note: Backordered quantities may be a partial quantity of the full quantity originally ordered.





DENIED ORDERS

Vaccine orders may be entirely or partially denied by your depot and will be listed in the *Create/View Orders* screen in the *Denied Orders* section.

Navigate to the Selection Arrow to open the denied order and view the details.

Current Or Inbound Or	der/Transfer List rders				
Select	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Approval Date	Status
>	68463	PH8279AHS	2018/07/31	2018/07/31	Partially Received
>	90485	PH8279AHS	2019/07/05	2019/07/05	Shipped or Ready for Pick Up
>	90487	PH8279AHS	2019/07/05	2019/07/05	Shipped or Ready for Pick Up
Backorder	ed Orders				
Select	Order Nu	umber	PIN	Submit Date	Backorder Date
>	9049)1	PH8279AHS	2019/07/05	2019/07/05
Denied Ord	lers				
Select	Order	Number	PIN	Submit Date	Denial Date
>	85	i987	PH8279AHS	2019/04/05	2019/04/05
>	87	169	PH8279AHS	2019/05/02	2019/05/02
>	87	653	PH8279AHS	2019/05/10	2019/05/12
>	89	9442	PH8279AHS	2019/06/17	2019/06/17
>	89	798	PH8279AHS	2019/06/21	2019/06/24

Only the denied doses will be listed on the denied order. If partial doses have been approved or back-ordered, they will be listed in their respective sections above. There are three reasons vaccine may be entirely or partially denied.

Denial Reasons	Rationalization
Order is outside of recommended quantity	The order quantity is much higher than the expected use prior to the vaccine's expiration date. This is based on the regional history.
Facility is not authorized	The vaccine on order is not approved for use by the region.
Supply is not available	The vaccine is currently out of stock or on allocation and the order cannot be filled as requested.





TRANSFERRING VACCINE

Transfers can be used to move vaccines between organizations and facilities. Organizations have the ability to transfer vaccines. Depending on your depot's policy, facilities may also have the ability to transfer vaccines. Facilities and organizations should report all transfers to their depot before they are shipped. Transfers should be used for viable vaccines only. For non-viable vaccines, the vaccine return process should be used (see return section in this manual for more information).

Creating a Transfer:

1. Using the Navigation Menu, click on Orders/Transfers Menu and then click Create/View Orders to show the Current Order/Transfer List.

2. Click the **Create Transfer** button at the bottom of the screen to open the **Create Transfer** screen.

Note: If the **Create Transfer** button is not available on the **Create/View Orders** screen your organization has removed this permission from your facility.

Create Transfer Sending Organization (IRMS Sending Facility Submitter Receiving Organization Receiving Facility	S) n (IRMS)		AHS-CALGARY ZONE AHS-DEPOT-CALGAF KRISTI SIAHAYA (KRI select select	RY ISTI_RC)		—
Transfer Details						
Transfer Quantity	Vaccine	Lot Number	Quantity Available	Public	Expiration Date	Transfer Reason
	DTaP (duder)	322	10	Y	01/01/2016	
	Influenza Nasal Spray	2547854	2	Y	06/30/2015	
						Cancel Create Transfer

3. Your inventory will show under the *Transfer Details* section.

4. Indicate the organization and facility you are transferring to by selecting them from the drop down menus. Enter the number of doses for each lot number in the **Transfer Quantity** field. Enter the transfer reason in the **Transfer Reason** field. The transfer reason is a text field that allows you to type the reason for the transfer.

5. Click the **Create Transfer** button on the lower right side of the page.





6. The transfer will appear under *Outbound Transfers* section on the *Create/View Orders* screen.

Current Order/Transfer List Inbound Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Approval Date Status > 307 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/09/2014 Approved > 285 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/05/2014 Shipped or Ready for Pick Up Backordered Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Backorder Date Denied Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Cold Transfer Number PIN <td< th=""><th>-</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></td<>	-						
Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Approval Date Status > 307 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/09/2014 Approved > 285 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/05/2014 Shipped or Ready for Pick Up Backordered Orders > 285 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/05/2014 Shipped or Ready for Pick Up Backordered Orders > Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Backorder Date Denied Orders > Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SO	Current Inbound	Order/Transfer List Orders					
> 307 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/09/2014 Approved > 285 AHSCA-CA 11/07/2014 11/09/2014 Shipped or Ready for Pick Up Backordered Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Backorder Date Denied Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Org	Select	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Approval Date	Status	
	>	307	AHSCA-CA	11/07/2014	11/09/2014	Approved	
Backordered Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Backorder Date Denied Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer S Select Transfer S Select Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility	>	285	AHSCA-CA	11/04/2014	11/05/2014	Shipped or Ready for Pick Up)
Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Backorder Date Denied Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer S Select Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Select Transfer S Select Backorder Date Rejected Transfer S Select Select Transfer Number	Backord	lered Orders					
Denied Orders Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Rejected By State	Selec	ct Orde	r Number	PIN	Submit Date	Backorder Date	
Select Order Number PIN Submit Date Denial Date Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility select Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility	Denied C	Orders					
Inbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Rejected Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility	Sele	ect O	rder Number	PIN	Submit Date	Denial Date	
Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Sending Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 188 AHSNO-WES 10/31/2014 AHS-NORTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK Outbound Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfer S Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Rejected By State	Inbound	Transfers					
Image:	Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Sending Or	rganization (IRMS)/Facility	
Outbound Transfers Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Rejected By State	>	188	AHSNO-WES	10/31/2014	AHS-NORTH Z	ONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK	
Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility > 221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility	Outboun	d Transfers					
221 AHSSO-MH 11/10/2014 AHS-SOUTH ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Reject Date Rejected By Sta	Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Receiving Org	ganization (IRMS)/Facility	
Rejected Transfers Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Reject Date Rejected By State	>	221	AHSSO-MH	11/10/2014	AHS-SOUTH ZONE	AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT	
Select Transfer Number PIN Submit Date Receiving Organization (IRMS)/Facility Reject Date Rejected By Sta	Rejected	d Transfers					
	Select	Transfer Number PI	N Submit Date	Receiving Orga	nization (IRMS)/Facility	Reject Date Rejected By	Status
Create Order Create Transfer Vaccine Re					Crea	te Order Create Transfer Vacci	ne Return

7. Click the **Selection Arrow** next to the outbound transfer to open the **Transfer** screen, and then select **Print** to print the transfer paperwork.

Receiving a Transfer:

1. To receive a transfer, click on the Orders/Transfers Menu and then click Create/View Orders to show the Current Order/Transfer List.

2. Click the **Selection Arrow** next to the transfer you want to receive under the **Inbound Transfers** section.

Current C Inbound C	Order/Transfer List Orders					
Select	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Approval Date	Status	
>	307	AHSCA-CA	11/07/2014	11/09/2014	Approved	
>	285	AHSCA-CA	11/04/2014	11/05/2014	Shipped or Ready for Pick Up	
Dackorde	arad Ordare					
Select	t Orders	der Number	PIN	Submit Date	Backorder Date	
Donied O	rdore					
Selec	t	Order Number	PIN	Submit Date	Denial Date	
Inbound	ransfers					
Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Sending C	Organization (IRMS)/Facility	_
>	188	AHSNO-WES	10/31/2014	AHS-NORTH 2	ZONE / AHS-DEPOT-WESTLOCK	
Outbound	l Transfers					
Select	Transfer Number	PIN	Submit Date	Receiving O	rganization (IRMS)/Facility	
>	221	AHSSO-MH	11/10/2014	AHS-SOUTH ZON	E / AHS-DEPOT-MEDICINE HAT	
Rejected	Transfers					
Select	Transfer Number	PIN Submit Date	Receiving Orga	nization (IRMS)/Facility	Reject Date Rejected By Sta	atus
				Cre	ate Order Create Transfer Vaccine Re	turn

3. This will take you to the *Receive Transfers* screen. There are several shipment possibilities. Please see the directions for the scenario that best describes your current transfer for complete instructions on how to receive the vaccines.





Shipment possibilities/scenarios: Follow the directions for the appropriate scenario below.

- The transfer is complete and viable.
- The transfer is a partial order with missing/incorrect vaccine products.
- The whole shipment is damaged or nonviable.

If the transfer is complete and viable:

- a. Verify the products listed in the transfer match the product physically received. Enter the **Receipt Quantity** for each vaccine product shipped.
- **b.** Click the **Receive** button. The system updates your inventory with the received doses by lot number.

If the transfer is partial with missing/incorrect vaccine products:

- **a.** Receive any lines where all doses were received using the steps as described above.
- **b.** For the missing vaccine products:
 - 3) Enter the quantity of doses actually received in the **Receipt Quantity** column (this may be 0) and enter a **Rejected Quantity** that shows the number of doses missing for that product.
 - 4) Select Shipment is Incomplete or Incorrect Lot Number from the Reason for Rejecting dropdown.
- c. Click the Receive button.
- d. The system updates your inventory with only the received doses.
- e. The system will not alert the shipper to the discrepancy. Alert the shipper to the discrepancy via phone or email.

Note: The quant	ity receiv	/ed and	l quantit	y reject	ed mi	ust add	l up to	the shi	pped quantity.
Logout Select Organization (IRMS) Select Facility Select VFC Pin Favorites Patient Vaccinations Organization (IRMS) Facilities Lot Numbers Reconciliation Aggregate Vaccine Counts Search/Add Search Results Detail Orders/Transfers Alerts	Must a to sh qua Details Receipt Quantity 10	add up ipped ntity EL Rejected Quantity Va	1 /09/26 AINA BOLTON Inceine Funding ricella P	(ELAINA BOLT Manufacturer MF	ON) Lot Number N028764	Expiration Date 2019/10/13	Reason Order ID: 94079	Inventory Action Merging wit Existing Lo	Reason for rejecting select Shipment is damaged Shipment was not ordered Incorrect lot number

If the whole order is damaged or nonviable (for example, a cold chain failure):

Contact your depot immediately for further instructions for vaccines that arrive damaged or spoiled.





VACCINE RETURNS

Depending on your depot's policy, facilities may have the ability to return non-viable vaccines to the depot. Vaccines removed from inventory for the categories below will appear on the *Vaccine Return* screen.

Expired	Vaccines were not used before the manufacturer's expiration date and have expired on shelf. Doses marked as expired will be eligible for return to your depot using the vaccine return process in AVI.
Recall	Vaccines that are nationally recalled, or Alberta Health sends notice to stop using the vaccine and to return to your depot. Doses marked as recalled will be eligible for return to your depot using the vaccine return process in AVI.
Spoiled	Vaccines have spoiled due to improper storage practices, man-made or natural disasters, or spoiled during transport. Doses marked as spoiled will be eligible for return to your depot using the vaccine return process in AVI.

- 1. Using the Navigation Menu, click on Orders/Transfers Menu and then click Create/View Orders to show the Current Order/Transfer List.
- 2. Click the Vaccine Return button at the bottom of screen to open the Vaccine Return screen.

Note: If the **Vaccine Return** button is not available on the **Create/View Orders** screen your organization has removed this permission from your facility.

- **3.** Your vaccine doses that qualify for being returned will show under the *Vaccine Return* section.
- 4. Enter the quantity you will be returning in the **Transfer Quantity** field.

Vaccine R	eturn								
Sending Or	ganization (IRMS)			AHS	-DEPOT-RE	D DEER			
 Sending Fa 	icility			FAM	ILY MEDIC/	AL ASSOCIA	TES		
Receiving (Organization (IRMS)			2025	- AHS-RTN	-RED DEER			
Receiving F	Facility								
Vaccine R	eturn								
Transfer Quantity	Vaccine	Lot Number	Usable Quantity Available	Wasted Quantity	Wastage Cost	Funding Source	Expiration Date	Return Reason	Option
	Influenza inj trivalent w/presv. 6+ mos	547G5	40	3		Y	08/31/2015	Vaccine recall	Remove
	Influenza inj trivalent w/presv. 6+ mos	547G5	40	5		Y	08/31/2015	Natural Disaster / Power Outage	Remove
							Contract of the		

5. Click the Submit and Print Vaccine Return button on the lower right of the screen.

TIP: Ensure your pop up blocker is turned off for the AVI website as your browser will block the packing slip as a pop up.





- 6. The *Vaccine Return* packing slip will open in a new browser window. Print the document and include with the vaccine to be returned to your depot.
- 7. Physically return the vaccines as per your depot's routine procedures or instructions.

			Va	ccine Return				
ransfer Number: 9157 ending Organization (IRMS ending Facility:): AHS-DEPOT-FORT MCMURRAY							
eceiving Organization (IRM eceiving Facility:	IS): PROVINCIAL VACCINE - RTN							
eceiving Organization (IRN eceiving Facility: Transfer Quantity	IS): PROVINCIAL VACCINE - RTN Vaccine	Funding	Lot Number	Usable Quantity Available	Wasted Quantity	Wastage Cost	Expiration Date	Return Reason
ecceiving Organization (IRN ecceiving Facility: Transfer Quantity 118	IS): PROVINCIAL VACCINE - RTN Vaccine Diluent	Funding	Lot Number L018496	Usable Quantity Available O	Wasted Quantity	Wastage Cost	Expiration Date	Return Reason Natural Disaster / Power Outage
eceiving Organization (IRN eceiving Facility: Transfer Quantity 118 245	IS): PROVINCIAL VACCINE - RTN Vaccine Diluent HPV, quadrivalent	Funding P P	Lot Number L018496 K026398	Usable Quantity Available 0 0	Wasted Quantity 118 245	Wastage Cost	Expiration Date 2018/03/12 2017/05/14	Return Reason Natural Disaster / Power Outag Natural Disaster / Power Outag